
CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511

**Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate
the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to
request this service, please contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511

MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA
Beloit City Plan Commission

Wednesday, April 17, 2013 at 7:00 PM
The Forum

Beloit City Hall, First Floor
100 State Street, Beloit

1. Call to Order and Roll Call

2. Approval of the Minutes of the April 3, 2013 Meeting

3. Zoning Map Amendment – 1500 and 1505 Gateway Boulevard
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the
zoning district classification from R-3, Low-Density Multi-family Residential District, to M-1,
Limited Manufacturing District, for the properties located at 1500 and 1505 Gateway
Boulevard

4. Certified Survey Map – 2220 Liberty Avenue
Review and consideration of a two-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at
2220 Liberty Avenue in the City of Beloit

5. Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map – 2655 W. Finley Road
Review and consideration of a one-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located on
2655 W. Finley Road in the Town of Beloit

6. Zoning Map Amendment – 1533 W. Grand Avenue and 1528 and 1532 Forest Avenue
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the
zoning district classification from R-1B, Single-Family Residential District, to PLI, Public
Lands & Institutions District, for the properties located at 1533 W. Grand Avenue and 1528
and 1532 Forest Avenue

7. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items

8. Adjournment

If you are unable to attend this meeting, please contact Gail Riddle in the Planning Office at 364-6700 no
later than 4:00 PM the day before the meeting.

Notice Mailed: April 12, 2013 Approved: Julie Christensen
Community Development Director



CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511

MINUTES
BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Wednesday, April 3, 2013
The Forum, Beloit City Hall

100 State Street, Beloit

1. Call to Order and Roll Call
Chairperson Ramsden called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. Gail Riddle called the roll.
Present were Commissioners Jacobsen, Faragher, Seifarth, and Smith. Commissioner Moore
arrived at 7:10 PM. Commissioner Kelly was absent.

2. Approval of the Minutes of the March 20, 2013 Meeting
Commissioner Faragher moved and Commissioner Smith seconded a motion to approve the
March 20, 2013 minutes. The minutes were approved (5-0).

3. Sign Ordinance Exception – Casey’s General Store – 2240 Cranston Road
Public hearing, review and consideration of exceptions to Section 30.40(2)(c) and 30.40(2)(e) of
the Outdoor Sign Regulations to allow a secondary, on-premises wall sign to be larger than 30
square feet in area and to allow more than three (3) secondary, on-premises signs in a C-2,
Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 2240 Cranston Road.

Director of Planning & Building Services Drew Pennington summarized the Staff Report and
Staff Recommendations.

Commissioner Faragher asked if there was still some question about the location of the building
and if so, would that impact the signage. Mr. Pennington answered that the City Council
approved Casey’s proposed layout, subject to the conditions that the Plan Commission
members had discussed before voting to recommend denial.

Chairperson Ramsden opened the Public Hearing.

Ryan Swanson, Arc Design Resources, was present on behalf of Casey’s General Store.
Commissioner Faragher asked Mr. Swanson how the height of the canopy would affect signage.
Mr. Swanson answered that the canopy height was about 20 feet and on three sides there
would be a smaller logo feature. Commissioner Smith asked Mr. Swanson if the freestanding
sign is standard for Casey’s and Mr. Swanson said that it was.

Mr. Pennington stated that additional signs on the canopy would require another Exception and
that the question of whether conditions could be attached to this request restricting the size of
the monument sign required a legal interpretation because the dimensions meet code.

Chairperson Ramsden closed the Public Hearing.



Commissioner Faragher moved to approve the Sign Ordinance Exception and Commissioner
Jacobsen seconded the motion. The motion carried (6-0).

4. Zoning Map Amendment – 545 & 549 W. Grand Avenue; 615, 619, 625, & 629 Eighth Street;
and 548 Locust Street
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning
district classification from C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, and R-1B, Single-Family
Residential District, to PLI, Public Lands & Institutions District, for the properties located at 545
& 549 W. Grand Avenue; 615, 619, 625 & 629 Eighth Street; and 548 Locust Street

Mr. Pennington summarized the Staff Report and Staff Recommendations.

Chairperson Ramsden opened and closed the Public Hearing.

Commissioner Faragher moved to approve the Zoning Map Amendment and Commissioner
Seifarth seconded the motion. The motion was approved (6-0).

5. Zoning Map Amendment - 501 Prospect Street
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning
district classification from PLI, Public Lands and Institutions District, to CBD-1 Central Business
District-Core, for the property located at 501 Prospect Street.

Mr. Pennington summarized the Staff Report and Recommendations.

Commissioner Ramsden asked if the only liquor sales that could be approved would be “liquor
sales associated with event hosting” under CBD-1. Mr. Pennington stated that within CBD-1,
the applicant was eligible to seek the full spectrum of liquor licenses.

Chairperson Ramsden opened the Public Hearing.

Rodney Tapp was present to represent the Schoville Center Apartments, 545 Public Avenue.
Mr. Tapp stated that their concern is that they manage the apartments which include 151 units
for seniors and young disabled and more parking issues and traffic concerns for the disabled
tenants may be created if this is approved.

Mr. Pennington added that the applicant did have some creative ideas on parking and may be
willing to share them.

The applicant, John Wittnebel, stated that they understand that parking will be a problem. He
stated that parking concerns will come with a big event and people may have to walk up to five
blocks. He added that hundreds of on-street stalls are available nearby.

Commissioner Faragher added that he hopes they will be able to coordinate parking with
neighbors.

Chairperson closed the Public Hearing.



Commissioner Faragher moved to approve the Zoning Map Amendment and Commissioner
Seifarth seconded the motion. The motion carried (6-0).

6. Conditional Use Permit – 501 Prospect Street
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Conditional Use Permit to allow a community
service use in a CBD-1, Central Business District-Core, for the property located at 501 Prospect
Street.

Mr. Pennington summarized the Staff Report and Staff Recommendation.

Chairperson Ramsden asked if it would be likely that youth would be in the building other than
Youth United events. Mr. Pennington commented that the recommended condition was not
intended to prevent patrons from bringing children but rather to build a fire wall between
community service uses and the sale of alcohol.

Chairperson Ramsden opened the Public Hearing.

Mr. Wittnebel commented that according to the application for a liquor license, they would
have to have specific plans to be able to keep liquor sales.

Chairperson Ramsden closed the Public Hearing.

Commissioner Faragher moved and Commissioner Smith seconded a motion to approve the
Conditional Use Permit. The motion carried (6-0).

7. Zoning Map Amendment – 1035 and 1041 Udell Drive
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning
district classification from temporary R-1A, Single Residential District, to permanent R-1A,
Single Family Residential District, for the properties located at 1035 and 1041 Udell Drive.

Mr. Pennington summarized the Staff Report and Staff Recommendation.

Chairperson Ramsden opened and closed the Public Hearing.

Commissioner Seifarth made a motion to approve and Commissioner Faragher seconded the
motion to approve the Zoning Map Amendment. The motion carried (6-0).



8. Zoning Map Amendment – 1500 and 1505 Gateway Boulevard
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning
district classification from R-3, Low-Density Multi-family Residential District, to M-1 Limited
Manufacturing District, for the properties located at 1500 and 1505 Gateway Boulevard.

Mr. Pennington summarized the Staff Report and Staff Recommendation.

Commissioner Seifarth asked if they had heard from the neighbors who were notified and Mr.
Pennington stated that he had not received any comments.

Mr. Faragher commented that at the time the property was zoned R-3, it was thought that this
would be residential but now it does not seem likely. Commissioner Seifarth commented that
just because there is no residential right now does not mean that it will not happen in the
future, adding that he could not see opening it up for businesses.

Chairperson Ramsden opened and closed the Public Hearing.

Commissioner Faragher moved that the Zoning Map Amendment be laid over and
Commissioner Seifarth seconded the motion. The motion carried (5-1) with Commissioner
Jacobsen opposed.

9. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items
Mr. Pennington stated that the City Council approved the Casey’s General Store applications
and adopted the Wellhead Protection Ordinance.

10. Adjournment
The meeting adjourned at 7:57 PM.



April 17 Staff Report, ZMA, 1500-1505 Gateway Boulevard

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: April 17, 2013 Agenda Item: 3 File Number: ZMA-2013-03

Applicant: Andrew Janke, o/b/o Beloit
Economic Development Corporation

Owner: Beloit Economic Development
Corporation

Location: 1500 & 1505 Gateway
Boulevard

Current Zoning: R-3, Low-Density
Multi-Family Residential District
Proposed Zoning: M-1, Limited
Manufacturing District

Existing Land Use: Agricultural &
Vacant Land

Parcel Size:
1500: 17.7 Acres
1505: 42.5 Acres

Request Overview/Background Information:
Andrew Janke, on behalf of the Beloit Economic Development Corporation, has submitted an application for a Zoning Map
Amendment to change the zoning district classification from R-3, Low-Density Multi-Family Residential District to M-1, Limited
Manufacturing District, for the properties located at 1500 & 1505 Gateway Boulevard.

Key Issues:
 The applicant intends to market the subject properties for Business Park development (e.g. office, light industrial).
 The R-3 district is intended to accommodate low-density multi-family (at a density of up to 25 dwelling units per acre)

and other low-density residential development. The M-1 district is intended to accommodate industrial, manufacturing,
and commercial activities that do not create appreciable nuisances or hazards.

 The property located at 1500 Gateway Boulevard is 17.7 acres and the property located at 1505 Gateway Boulevard is
42.5 acres. Both properties have direct access to existing infrastructure along Gateway Boulevard.

 On March 18
th
, the City Council adopted an Ordinance amending the Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map to

recommend Business Park uses for the subject properties.
 The attached Location & Zoning Map shows the location of the subject properties and the zoning of the surrounding

area. The predominant surrounding land use is agricultural, and the property to the east of the 1505 parcel is located in
the Town of Turtle within the Boundary Adjustment Area. There is an existing multi-family residential development to
the northeast of the 1500 parcel. The 1500 parcel has frontage on Gateway Boulevard and the improved northern
segment of Apex Drive. The 1505 parcel has frontage on Gateway Boulevard and the dedicated-but-unimproved
southern segment of Apex Drive. The southern segment of Apex Drive will likely be constructed when the 1505 parcel
and/or the industrial lands to the south & southwest are developed.

 This application is being considered in accordance with procedures outlined in Section 2-300 of the Zoning Ordinance.
 Planning staff mailed the attached Public Notice to the owners of nearby properties and the Town of Turtle. As of this

writing, staff has not received any comments.
 Findings of Fact - Based on Section 2-304 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a

recommendation based on the following considerations:
a. The existing use of property within the general area of the subject property;

 The subject properties are located in the center of the Gateway Business Park, which includes
major employers such as Kettle Foods, Staples, and Kerry Ingredients. Although the surrounding
properties remain in agricultural use, they are expected to develop as a mix of office and light
industrial projects within the next decade. The M-1 classification is compatible with existing and
planned uses within the general area.

b. The zoning classification of property within the general area of the subject property;
 The subject properties are adjacent to a massive M-1 district that includes the northern half of the

Gateway Business Park, and a massive M-2 district that includes the southern half of the
Gateway Business Park. M-1 is more appropriate for the subject properties than M-2 given the
existing residential zoning districts (PUD, R-3, and R-1A) that comprise the Eagles Ridge
neighborhood to the north of the subject properties. There is a City-owned 9.6-acre parcel to the
north of the 1505 parcel that will remain as open space due to topography & surface water, which
will serve as a natural buffer between the 1505 parcel and the Eagles Ridge neighborhood.

c. The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning classification; and
 The subject properties are suitable for the uses permitted in the R-3 district, but the applicant

intends to market the subject properties for office & light industrial development.



April 17 Staff Report, ZMA, 1500-1505 Gateway Boulevard

d. The trend of development and zoning map amendments in the general area of the subject property.
 The Gateway Business Park and Eagles Ridge neighborhood have developed in a slow-but-

steady fashion over the past decade. Recent nearby projects include a major addition to the
Morse Group/Amp Electric building and major additions to the Kettle Foods processing and
distribution facilities.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The Comprehensive Plan recommends Business Park uses and a zoning district classification of M-1, M-2, or C-1 for the
subject properties. This proposed Zoning Map Amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, as required by Section
66.1001(3) of Wisconsin Statutes.

Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines)

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
Based upon the above Findings of Fact and the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the Planning & Building Services Division
recommends approval of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification from R-3, Low-Density Multi-
Family Residential District to M-1, Limited Manufacturing District, for the properties located at 1500 & 1505 Gateway Boulevard.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Photos, Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List.



April 17 Staff Report, ZMA, 1500-1505 Gateway Boulevard



April 17 Staff Report, ZMA, 1500-1505 Gateway Boulevard

From W side of 1500, Looking NE

From Gateway/Apex Int., Looking E at 1505



April 17 Staff Report, ZMA, 1500-1505 Gateway Boulevard



April 17 Staff Report, ZMA, 1500-1505 Gateway Boulevard



April 17 Staff Report, ZMA, 1500-1505 Gateway Boulevard



April 17 Staff Report, ZMA, 1500-1505 Gateway Boulevard



April 17 Staff Report, CSM, 2220 Liberty Avenue

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: April 17, 2013 Agenda Item: 4 File Number: CSM-2013-07

Applicant: Combs & Associates, Inc. Owner: Gary Graves Location: 2220 Liberty Avenue

Existing Zoning: R-1A, Single-Family
Residential District

Existing Land Use: Single-Family
Dwelling

Total Area: 0.89 Acre

Request Overview/Background Information:
Combs & Associates, Inc. has submitted an Application for the Review of a Minor Subdivision and a 2-Lot Certified Survey Map
(CSM) for the property located at 2220 Liberty Avenue in the City of Beloit. According to Section 12.05(1)(b) of the Subdivision
Ordinance, the Plan Commission may approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor subdivision of land within the City
where there is no dedication of land to the City.

Key Issues:
 The intent of the proposed CSM is to subdivide an existing residential parcel into two identical lots in order to facilitate

the sale of the southern lot.
 Both proposed lots are 75 feet in width and 258 feet in length, for an area of 19,350 square feet (0.444 acre) each.
 Proposed Lot 1 includes an existing house and garage and will retain frontage on Liberty Avenue. Proposed Lot 2 is

undeveloped with frontage on Merrill Street, and will be listed for sale.
 Both proposed lots meet the minimum lot width and area standards for properties in the R-1A district.
 The application and preliminary CSM are attached to this report.
 The City’s Review Agents have reviewed the proposed CSM and have not submitted any comments.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The City’s Comprehensive Plan recommends Single-Family Residential – Urban uses for the subject property. This proposed
land division and the underlying zoning district classification are consistent with this recommendation.

Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – This proposed land division will create a buildable single-family lot that will

utilize existing infrastructure in close proximity to existing destinations.
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – This land division will allow the

property owner to sell an underutilized portion of his property.

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the
property located at 2220 Liberty Avenue in the City of Beloit, subject to the following conditions:

1. Lot 1 shall remain addressed as 2220 Liberty Avenue and Lot 2 shall be addressed as 2221 Merrill Street.
2. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds and the applicant shall provide the Planning

& Building Services Division with a copy of the recorded CSM by December 31, 2013.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Preliminary CSM, Application, and Resolution.



April 17 Staff Report, CSM, 2220 Liberty Avenue



April 17 Staff Report, CSM, 2220 Liberty Avenue



April 17 Staff Report, CSM, 2220 Liberty Avenue



April 17 Staff Report, CSM, 2220 Liberty Avenue

RESOLUTION
APPROVING A TWO-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP

FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT
2220 LIBERTY AVENUE

WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City
of Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan Commission of
the City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor subdivision of land within
the jurisdiction of the City; and

WHEREAS, the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 2220
Liberty Avenue, containing 0.89 acre, more or less, is located within the jurisdiction of the City of
Beloit; and

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the attached two-
lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land:

Lot 4, Block 7 of McGavock Heights Unrecorded, being part of Outlot 34-7 of the
Assessor’s Plat of Beloit Township (now City of Beloit), being located in the NW ¼
of the NW ¼ of Section 34, T.1N., R.12E. of the 4th P.M., City of Beloit, Rock
County, Wisconsin.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of
Beloit does hereby conditionally approve the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map for the property
located at 2220 Liberty Avenue in the City of Beloit, subject to the following conditions:

1. Lot 1 shall remain addressed as 2220 Liberty Avenue and Lot 2 shall be addressed as 2221
Merrill Street.

2. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds and the applicant
shall provide the Planning & Building Services Division with a copy of the recorded CSM by
December 31, 2013.

Adopted this 17th day of April, 2013.

Charles Ramsden, Plan Commission Chairman

ATTEST:

Julie Christensen
Community Development Director



April 17 Staff Report, CSM, Finley Road (TOB).docx 

CITY OF BELOIT 

REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 

Meeting Date: April 17, 2013 

 

Agenda Item: 5 File Number: CSM-2013-06 

Applicant: RH Batterman 

 

Owner: Marian Schmid  
 
 

Location: 2655 W. Finley Road, Town 
of Beloit 

Existing Zoning: A-2, General 
Agriculture District (Town Zoning) 

Existing Land Use: Single-Family 
Residential, Agriculture, Open Space  

CSM Area: 4.22 Acres 

 
 
Request Overview/Background Information: 
In accordance with Section 12.05 of the Subdivision Ordinance, the applicant has submitted an Application for Review of a Minor 
Subdivision and one-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the property located at 2655 W. Finley Road in the Town of Beloit within 
the City’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction. The attached Location & Zoning Map shows the location of the property involved in this 
application.  
 
 
Key Issues: 

 The proposed CSM will create Proposed Lot 1 and the house and garage will remain on the parent parcel. The current 
owner intends to construct a new home on Proposed Lot 1 and allow one of her children to live in the existing home on the 
parent parcel.  

 Proposed Lot 1 is 4.224 acres in area and is located near the intersection of West Finley Road and South Afton Road. It 
includes approximately 320-feet of frontage on West Finley Road. The parent parcel will retain 52.9 acres of land once the 
property has been subdivided.    

 The City’s Review Agents have not submitted any comments, concerns, or recommendations. 
 
 
Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  
The property is outside the boundaries of the Future Land Use Map. Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic 
Goal #5. 

 

Sustainability: 

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A 

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A 

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A 

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A 

 

Staff Recommendation: 

The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached one-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the 
property located at 2655 W. Finley Road in the Town of Beloit, subject to the following condition: 
 

1. The applicant shall record the CSM with the Rock County Register of Deeds and shall provide the Planning and Building 
Services Division with a copy of the recorded CSM by December 31, 2013. 

 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A 

 

Attachments: Location Map,  Application, CSM, and Resolution. 



April 17 Staff Report, CSM, Finley Road (TOB).docx 

 



April 17 Staff Report, CSM, Finley Road (TOB).docx 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 



April 17 Staff Report, CSM, Finley Road (TOB).docx 



April 17 Staff Report, CSM, Finley Road (TOB).docx 



April 17 Staff Report, CSM, Finley Road (TOB).docx 

 



April 17 Staff Report, CSM, Finley Road (TOB).docx 

RESOLUTION 

APPROVING A ONE-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 

FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2655 W. FINLEY ROAD 

IN THE TOWN OF BELOIT 

 

WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit 

entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit 

to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor subdivision of land within the extraterritorial jurisdiction 

of the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 2655 W. Finley 

Road in the Town of Beloit is located within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the proposed  

one-lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 

 

PART OF LOT 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP DOC. NO. 1287194, RECORDED IN 

VOLUME 19 ON PAGES 56-57 OF CERIFIED SURVEY MAPS, BEING A PART OF 

OUT-LOT 4-2 OF THE ASSESSORS PLAT OF BELOIT TOWNSHIP, BEING A PART 

OF THE S.W. 1/4 OF THE N.E. 1/4 OF SECTION 4, T.1 N., R.12 E. OF THE 4
TH

 P.M., 

BELOIT TOWNSHIP, ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN (A/K/A 2655 W. Finley Road) 

Containing 4.224 acres, more or less. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit 

does hereby approve the attached one-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 2655 W. Finley 

Road in the Town of Beloit, subject to the following condition: 

 

1. The applicant shall record the CSM with the Rock County Register of Deeds and shall provide the 

Planning and Building Services Division with a copy of the recorded CSM by December 31, 2013. 

 

 

Adopted this 17
th
 day of April, 2013. 

 

 

   

                                                                             Charles Ramsden, Plan Commission Chairperson 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 ___ 

Julie Christensen, Community Development Director 

 

 

 

 

 



April 17 Staff Report, ZMA, Gaston Expansion.docx 

CITY OF BELOIT 

REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 

Meeting Date: April 17, 2013 

 

Agenda Item: 6 File Number: ZMA-2013-07 

Applicant: School District of Beloit 

 

Owner: School District of Beloit 
 

Location: 1528 &1532 Forest Avenue, 
and 1533 W. Grand Avenue 

 

Current Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family 
Residential 

Proposed Zoning: PLI, Public Lands & 
Institutions District 

Existing Land Use: Single-Family 
Residential 

Proposed Land Use: Gaston School 
Expansion 

Total Area: 0.45 Acre 

 
 
Request Overview/Background Information: 
The School District of Beloit has submitted an application for a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district 
classification from R-1B, Single-Family Residential District to PLI, Public Lands & Institutions District, for the properties located 
at 1528 & 1532 Forest Avenue, and 1533 W. Grand Avenue. 
 
The attached Location & Zoning Map shows the location of the subject properties and the zoning of the surrounding area. The 
adjacent zoning and land uses are as follows: 

 North: R-1B, Single-Family Residential District; Single-Family Dwellings 
 South: R-1B, Single-Family Residential District; Single-Family Dwellings 
 East: R-1B, Single-Family Residential District; Single-Family Dwellings 
 West: R-1B, Single-Family Residential District; Single-Family Dwellings 

 
The Zoning Ordinance directs the Plan Commission to hold a hearing and make a recommendation regarding a Zoning Map 
Amendment based on written Findings of Facts and consistency with the Comprehensive Plan. 
  
Key Issues: 

 This request is related to the proposed expansion of Gaston Elementary School. On April 15, 2013, the City Council 
will consider an Ordinance amending the Future Land Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan to Institutional & 
Community Services which recommends a zoning classification of PLI for the subject properties. 

 The PLI district is a special purpose district that is intended to accommodate major public and quasi-public uses. 
 All of the subject properties must be rezoned to PLI and the existing structures must be demolished in order for the 

school building and grounds to be expanded as shown on the attached site plan. 
 Planning staff is currently performing Architectural and Site Plan Review of this proposed expansion. 
 Planning staff mailed the attached Public Notice to the owners of nearby properties. As of this writing, staff has not 

received any comments or concerns. 
 This application is being considered in accordance with the Zoning Map Amendment procedures contained in Section 

2-300 of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 Findings of Fact - Based on Section 2-304 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a 
recommendation based on the following considerations: 

a. The existing use of property within the general area of the subject property; 

 There are residential uses to the north, south, and west of the subject properties, and a school 
use to the east of the subject properties. The proposed expanded PLI District is compatible with 
these existing uses and the proposed school expansion is expected to have a positive impact 
upon the neighborhood. 

b. The zoning classification of property within the general area of the subject property; 

 Properties within the general area of the subject properties are zoned R-1B, with the exception of 
Gaston Elementary School, which is zoned PLI. This request involves a proposed expansion of 
the existing PLI district, and will expand the western boundary of the district by 100 feet along 
Forest Avenue, and 50 feet along West Grand Avenue.  

c. The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning classification; and 

 The subject properties are suitable for Single-Family Residential uses permitted in the existing 
zoning classification.  

d. The trend of development and zoning map amendments in the general area of the subject property. 

 The subject properties are located within an established neighborhood that has experienced very 



April 17 Staff Report, ZMA, Gaston Expansion.docx 

little redevelopment activity during the past decade. 
 
 
Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  
The Comprehensive Plan recommends Institutional & Community Service uses and a zoning district classification of PLI for the 
subject properties. This proposed Zoning Map Amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, as required by Section 
66.1001(3) of Wisconsin Statutes. 
 
Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5. 

 

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both 
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines) 
 

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A 

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A 

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A 

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – This rezoning will allow for the 
expansion of Gaston School which will help the school district to better meet the needs of the school children 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
Based upon the above Findings of Fact and the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the Planning & Building Services Division 

recommends approval of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification from R-1B, Single-Family 
Residential District to PLI, Public Lands & Institutions District, for the properties located at 1528 & 1532 Forest Avenue, and 
1533 W. Grand Avenue. 

 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A 

 

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Preliminary Site Plan, Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List. 
 



April 17 Staff Report, ZMA, Gaston Expansion.docx 
 



April 17 Staff Report, ZMA, Gaston Expansion.docx 

 

 

 

 

 



April 17 Staff Report, ZMA, Gaston Expansion.docx  



April 17 Staff Report, ZMA, Gaston Expansion.docx 
 



April 17 Staff Report, ZMA, Gaston Expansion.docx 

 

 

 

 

 



April 17 Staff Report, ZMA, Gaston Expansion.docx  



April 17 Staff Report, ZMA, Gaston Expansion.docx 
 


	Call to Order and Roll Call
	Approval of the Minutes of the April 3, 2013 Meeting
	Zoning Map Amendment - 1500-1505 Gateway Boulevard.pdf
	Certified Survey Map - 2220 Liberty Avenue
	Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map - 2655 W. Finley Road 
	Zoning Map Amendment - 1533 W. Grand Avenue and 1528 and 1532 Forest Avenue

